1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	EDMUND G. BROWN JR. Attorney General of California GLORIA A. BARRIOS Supervising Deputy Attorney General SCOTT J. HARRIS Deputy Attorney General State Bar No. 238437 300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702 Los Angeles, CA 90013 Telephone: (213) 897-2554 Facsimile: (213) 897-2804 Attorneys for Complainant  BEFORE THE BOARD OF PHARMACY DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS STATE OF CALIFORNIA
10	· ·
11	In the Matter of the Petition to Revoke Probation Against:  Case No. 3615
12	JOE LUIS SOSA
13	P.O. Box 1893 Hanford, CA 93232  PETITION TO REVOKE PROBATION
14	
15	Pharmacy Technician Registration No. TCH 32591
16	One.
17	
18	Complainant alleges:
19	<u>PARTIES</u>
20	1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Petition to Revoke Probation solely in her
21	official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of
22	Consumer Affairs.
23	2. On or about March 10, 2000, the Board issued Pharmacy Technician Registration
24	Number TCH 32591 to Joe Luis Sosa (Respondent). The Pharmacy Technician Registration
25	expired on January 31, 2008, and has not been renewed.
26	3. In a disciplinary action entitled "In the Matter of Accusation Against Joe L. Sosa,"
27	Case No. 2971, the Board issued a decision, effective February 13, 2007, in which Respondent's
28	Pharmacy Technician Registration was revoked. However, the revocation was stayed and
	1

111

28

5

8

11

12

13

14

15

16<sub>.</sub>

18

19

2021

22

2324

25

26

-27

28

6. Section 4301 of the Code states:

"The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation or issued by mistake.

Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following:

....

"(h) The administering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any dangerous drug or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to be dangerous or injurious to oneself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or to any other person or to the public, or to the extent that the use impairs the ability of the person to conduct with safety to the public the practice authorized by the license.

...

"(I) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13 (commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances or dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred. The board may inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order to fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances or dangerous drugs, to determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is deemed to be a conviction within the meaning of this provision. The board may take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, information, or indictment."

7. Section 118, subdivision (b), of the Code provides that the expiration or suspension of a license shall not deprive the Board of jurisdiction to proceed with a disciplinary action during the period within which the license may be renewed, restored, reissued or reinstated.

## FIRST CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION

(Failure to Obey Laws)

- 8. At all times after the effective date of Respondent's probationary period in Board Case No. 2971, Condition 2 required Respondent to obey all state and federal laws and regulations substantially related to or governing the practice of pharmacy.
- 9. Respondent's probation is subject to revocation because he failed to comply with Probation Condition 2, in that Respondent violated Code section 4301, subdivisions (h) and (l), and Vehicle Code section 23152, subdivision (b) (driving under the influence with .08 BAC or higher). Specifically, on or about August 12, 2008, in the criminal case entitled *The People of the State of California vs. Joe Luis Sosa*, Superior Court of California, County of Fresno, Case No M08800575, Respondent was convicted on his plea of nolo contendere to one count of violating Vehicle Code section 23152, subdivision (b), a misdemeanor. The court found that Respondent's blood alcohol level was .12, and placed Respondent on three (3) years probation subject to terms and conditions, including the attendance of a six (6) month Level 1-3 First Offender Alcohol Program.

## SECOND CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION

(Failure to Abstain from Use of Alcohol)

- 10. At all times after the effective date of Respondent's probationary period in Board Case No. 2971, Condition 21, in pertinent part, provided that Respondent abstain from all alcohol and drug use.
- 11. Respondent's probation is subject to revocation because he failed to comply with Probation Condition 21, in that Respondent used alcohol, as more fully discussed in paragraph 9, above, which is herein incorporated by reference as set forth in whole.

27 | \\\

28 | \\\

THIRD CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION

(Failure to Submit Proof of Attendance of Substance Abuse Programs)

18<sub>.</sub>

18. At all times after the effective date of Respondent's probationary period in Board Case No. 2971, Condition 17 required Respondent, within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the Board's final Decision, to begin regular attendance of a Board-approved, recognized and established substance abuse recovery support group in California (e.g., Alcoholics Anonymous, Narcotics Anonymous, Cocaine Anonymous, etc.), at the rate of at least one group meeting per week. Additionally, Condition 17 required Respondent to submit signed and dated documentation confirming attendance with each quarterly report for the first three (3) years of probation.

19. Respondent's probation is subject to revocation because he failed to comply with Probation Condition 17, in that Respondent has failed to submit documentation and proof of attendance of a Board-approved recognized and established substance abuse recovery support group in California.

## **PRAYER**

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged, and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

- 1. Revoking the probation that was granted by the Board of Pharmacy in Case No. 2971 and imposing the disciplinary order that was stayed thereby revoking Pharmacy Technician Registration No. TCH 32591 issued to Joe Luis Sosa;
- 2. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Technician Registration No. TCH 32591, issued to Joe Luis Sosa;

///

| |||

///

1	3. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.
2	
3	DATED: 3/22/10 ( ) rejue teld
4	VIRGINIA HEROLD
5	Executive Officer Board of Pharmacy Department of Consumer Affairs
6	Department of Consumer Affairs State of California Complainant
7	,
8	LA2010600176 60520468.doc
9	
10	
11   12	
13	
14	
15	•
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
<ul><li>26</li><li>27</li></ul>	
28	
20	7